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Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page
(New schools that were not open for instruction for
the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete

or submit an annual report this year).
Created: 07/02/2019 -« Last updated: 08/29/2019

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the
other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION

a. SCHOOL NAME BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS

(Select name from the drop down menu)

al. Popular School Name Bronx Arts
(Optional)

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)

Please select the correct authorizer as of
June 30, 2019 or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 8

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 04/2002
e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2003
INSTRUCTION
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized
schools only)

MISSION STATEMENT

Bronx Charter School for the Arts (BCSA) is a public elementary school founded on the principle that a
rich and vibrant background in the arts is a key component of achieving academic excellence. We strive
to serve as a model that encourages creativity and innovation in the classroom and inspires students to
develop the intellectual and personal fortitude to realize their dreams.

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools
only)

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements
(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s
mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The
design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be
served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems.

Variable 1 Creativity
Arts education is at the core of our mission. We use both
discipline based studio instruction and arts integration as a
catalyst for student engagement and as a tool to develop
high levels of critical and creative thinking skills in our
students.

Variable 2 Conscience
To create a scholarly atmosphere where all students can
learn and provide a professional learning community for
students and teachers, BCSA embeds its conscience values
into all elements of the school. These values guide and
promote the social and moral development of students. They
are:
Work Smart
Be Kind
Be Creative
Be Safe
Be Clean

Variable 3 Critical Thinking
BCSA employs well trained, highly reflective teachers who
use qualitative and quantitative data to inform lesson
planning and deliver rigorous instruction. BCSA students
receive a high quality education through a robust curriculum
that challenges them in conjunction with teachers to
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Variable 4

Variable 5

Variable 6
Variable 7
Variable 8
Variable 9

Variable 10

Need additional space for

variables

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

critically analyze, evaluate and synthesize information and
independently solve complex problems.

Continued Learning

BCSA implements an ongoing professional development
program for school staff that is frequent, differentiated and
part of the culture. Teachers have daily, weekly and monthly
opportunities for professional development including training
and support before the school year. BCSA tailors professional
development to meet individual teacher and school wide
needs while taking into account teacher interests. BCSA also
provides a comprehensive Response to Intervention (Rtl)
program during the school day with multiple and varied
extended learning opportunities for struggling students. In
addition to a longer school day, continued learning
opportunities throughout the year may include extended
learning after school and Saturday programs, summer
programs and intercession programs.

Collaboration, Communication & Community

BCSA believes strongly that the participation and
contribution of all community members enhance the benefits
of teaching and learning for students. For this reason, BCSA
hosts at least 25 community events and performances each
school year to build a culture of open and frequent
communication, share best practices for use in the school
and at home and engage the community in actively working
to secure the best outcomes for students. Communication
and collaboration occur within the school during daily,
weekly, monthly and quarterly intervals. The Board of
Trustees meets monthly for general meetings as well as in
committees, with participation from school leaders, teachers
and families. Teachers have daily common planning periods
among grade level teams, and school leaders meet weekly."

(No response)
(No response)
(No response)
(No response)

(No response)

No

https://www.bronxarts.net
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i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 416
ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19
SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 421
ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program
students)
Check all that apply

Grades Served K,1,2,63,4,5,6

11. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No
WITH A CHARTER OR

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION?

FACILITIES INFORMATION

m. FACILITIES
Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-207?

Yes, 2 sites

School Site 1 (Primary)
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ml. SCHOOL SITES
Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Physical Address

Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be

Served at Site
for coming year

Receives Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades (If

(K5,609, etc.) yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No).

950 Longfellow
Site 1 Avenue Bronx, 718 893 1042 NYC CSD 8 K5 No
NY 10474
mla. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.
Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address
Schaol Miriam Raccah
Leader
Operati
onal Karlene Cowan
Leader
Complia
nce Miriam Raccah
Contact
Complai
nt Miriam Raccah
Contact
DASA
Coordin  Allan Smith
ator
Phone
Contact
for After Miriam Raccah
Hours
Emerge
ncies
mlb. Is site 1 in public (co- Private Space

located) space or in private

space?
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93519372/yFPTXS6fVy/

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93519372/nBJtmagxAKU/

School Site 2

m2. SCHOOL SITES
Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year.

Site 2

Physical Address

1440 Story
Avenue, Bronx,
NY 10473

Phone Number

718 893 1042

District/CSD

NYC CSD 10

6/9

Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming year
(K5,609, etc.)

Receives Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No).

No



m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2.

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School

Leader Miriam Raccah

Operati
onal Karlene Cowan
Leader

Complia
nce Miriam Raccah
Contact

Complai
nt Miriam Raccah
Contact

DASA
Coordin  Allan Smith
ator

Phone

Contact

for After Miriam Raccah
Hours

Emerge

ncies

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co- Co located Space
located) space or in private

space?

m2c. Please list the terms of your current co-location.

Date school Is school If so, list year Is school If so, list the School at Full
will leave working with  expansion working with  proposed Capacity at
current co NYCDOE to will occur. NYCDOE to space and Site
location expand into move to year planned
current separate for move
space? space?
Site 2 N/A Yes 2019 No N/A No

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR
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nl. Were there any revisions to No
the school’s charter during the
2018-19 school year? (Please
include approved or pending
material and non-material

charter revisions).

ATTESTATION

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report.

Name Karlene Cowan
Position Director of Operations
Phone/Extension

Email

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board
President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter,
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We
understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been
deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our
charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on

your mobile device to sigh your name).

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

-
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Date 2019/08/01

Thank you.
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FIRE DEPARTMENT

9 METROTECH CENTER BROOKLYN, N.Y. 11201-3857

BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION

Public Buildings Unit
DATE: 08.28.2019.

PREMISES
X730 Bronx Charter School for the Arts X730 Bronx Charter School for the Arts
950 Longfellow Avenue 950 Longfellow Avenue

Bronx NY 10474 Bronx NY 10474

To Whom It May Concern:

The New York City Fire Department (“FDNY”), Bureau of Fire Prevention, Public Buildings Unit conducted
an inspection of the above-referenced premises on 09.13.2018.

XXX__The inspection did not reveal any violations that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized
to inspect and enforce.

The inspection resulted in issuance of violations of the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations
that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized to inspect and enforce.

As of XXXXXXX documents were submitted to FDNY as proof of correction, and such correction was deemed
acceptable to FDNY

The inspection, and a review of premises records, has disclosed that the premises may not be in compliance with
the lawful occupancy established by the New York City Department of Buildings.

This letter shall not be construed to be a permit for, or an approval of the premises. FDNY does not certify that the
premises is free from any violation for which it has not inspected, in accordance with its standard inspection protocols.
This letter shall not prevent FDNY from inspecting the premises at a later date, requiring the correction of any
deficiencies its finds at the premises, and/or issuing violations against the premises for conditions that do not comply with
the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations.

Examined by:

Tomasz Korbas, Supervising Inspector, PBU









Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link

Last updated: 07/15/2019

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of REGENTS Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)

(For technical reasons, please re select
authorizer name from the drop down

menu).
2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php?
CARD instid=800000055808&year=2018&createreport=1&allchecke

d=1&0OverallStatus=1&section 1003=1&EMindicators=1&EMc
omposite=1&EMgrowth=1&EMcompgrowth=1&EMelp=1&EMp
rogress=1&EMchronic=1&EMpart=1&staffqual=1&expend=1&

38ELA=1&38MATH=1&48SCl=1&nyseslat=1&feddata=1

Provide a direct URL or web link

to the most recent New York
State School Report Card for the
charter school (See
https://reportcards.nysed.govy/).
(Charter schools completing year
one will not yet have a School
Report Card or link to one. Please

type "URL is not available" in the
space provided.)
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E Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

Created: 07/23/2019 -« Last updated: 10/31/2019

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided.
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st.

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by
November 1st.

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress available. If/when
Toward Attainment of available, Describe
Goal Efforts School Will
Take If Goal Is Not
Met

This goal was met for
Math but not ELA.

With the creation of
our middle school, we
reconsidered our
elementary school
curriculum in order to
ensure our students
achieve excellence.
In addition, we joined
the Achievement First
Navigator team to
revamp our math
curriculum starting in
the 2018 school year
with kindergarten,
1st, and 2nd grades.
To further lead that
charge in the
elementary school,
we hired a principal
with a vision for
curricula that would
drive excellence and
experience
developing teachers.
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Academ
ic Goal
1

Each year, the
percent of BCSA
students enrolled for
two or more years
attaining proficiency
on the NYS
assessments will
meet the state
average on the ELA,
math and science
state assessments.

NYS Exam scores

2/7

Not Met

In Summer 2019 (in
advance of receiving
our State Test
Scores), we added
Teachers College
Readers and Writers
Workshop to our
curricular revamp
becoming a Project
School and
committed significant
resources to ensuring
that our teachers and
leaders are trained in
the program. In
addition, we have
begun working wit
ANet to provide
assessments,
coaching and data
driven instruction to
assist school leaders
in moving students
toward proficiency.

We started our
middle school using
the Achievement First
Navigator program
and Expeditionary
Learning together
with ThinkCERCA. We
are confident these
curricular selections,
together with the
innovative
programming we
have developed for
our middle school,
will ensure that all
scholars are prepared
to excel at the high
school of their choice.
These choices allow
scholars who have
not been at BCSA to
engage with grade
level standards and
tasks while receiving
intense Intervention
from an experienced
Rtl team as needed.
Such a diverse and



Academ
ic Goal
2

Academ
ic Goal
3

Each year, the
percent of BCSA
students enrolled for
two or more years
and attaining
proficiency on NYS
assessments will
exceed the district
average.

NYS Exam scores

Each year, K2 grade
level cohorts will
achieve at or above
the 50th Normal
Curve Equivalency
(NCE) percentile on
each tested subject
of the Terra Nova
exam. If this
benchmark is not
met, grade level
cohorts will increase
their average
percentile rank by at
least one half the
difference between
the previous year’s
rank and the 50th
Normal Curve
Equivalent (NCE).

Terra Nova scores

3717

Met

Not Met

rigorous curricular
program further
allows our team to
push on going BCSA
scholars towards the
deep understanding
and analysis required
by the most elite
schools in New York
City.

This goal was met for
Kindergarten but not
for 1st or 2nd Grades
for both Reading and
Math.

Therefore, we are
continuing our efforts
to provide
interventions and
supplemental
instruction during the
school day and
building in more time
for supplemental
instruction in our
kindergarten classes.
We will provide more
professional
development for our
kindergarten
teachers focused on
data driven
instruction and the
identification of
students at risk of
falling behind. We are
also more focused on
hiring highly qualified
teachers in early
grades and are
moving toward



Each year, BCSA will
Academ be in good standing

ic Goal under the state’s NYSED Determination Met

4 accountability
system.

Academ
ic Goal
5

Academ
ic Goal
6

Academ
ic Goal
7

Academ
ic Goal
8

Academ
ic Goal
9

Academ
ic Goal
10

2. Do have more academic goals
to add?

3. Do have more academic goals
to add?

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

No

No

Organizational Goal Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

Each year, 90% or
more of eligible

417

Met or Not Met

adapting a new
curriculum that we
feel will help a great
deal.

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will

Take



Org
Goal 1

Org
Goal 2

Org
Goal 3

families will choose
to re enroll their
students at BCSA for
the following year,
with the exception of
families who are
relocating.

Each year, 90% or
more of BCSA
families will report
satisfaction with their
child’s education.

Each year, 75% or
more of BCSA
teachers will report
satisfaction with the
school.

ATS Records

NYC Department of
Education Learning
Environment Survey

NYC Department of
Education Learning
Environment Survey

5/7

Met

Met

Not Met

While this question is
no longer explicitly
asked of

teachers, 70% of
overall responses by
teachers were
positive, falling short
of the 75%
satisfaction rate.

In response, the
school's

Leadership Team and
Trustees have
thoroughly reviewed
the teachers' survey
responses and are
working together to
address identified
challenge areas.
Some of these
concerns are being
addressed through
professional
development and
program
modifications while
others require
improved
communication and
leadership practices.

To improve teacher
retention in the 2019
20 school year, the
school leadership will
regularly meet with
instructional staff to
discuss professional



Org
Goal 4

Org
Goal 5

Org
Goal 6

Org
Goal 7

Org
Goal 8

Org
Goal 9

Org
Goal 10

Org
Goal 11

Org
Goal 12

Org
Goal 13

Org
Goal 14

Org
Goal 15

Org
Goal 16

Org
Goal 17

Org

Annual teacher
turnover will not
exceed 30%.

School records

6/7

Not Met

growth, overall level
of satisfaction as well
as any concerns they
may have.

In addition, the
school will carefully
monitor and review
survey responses in
case teachers and
other staff are
hesitant to discuss
concerns in person
and would prefer to
share information
confidentially.



Goal 18

Org
Goal 19

Org
Goal 20

5. Do have more organizational No
goals to add?

6. FINANCIAL GOALS

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will
Take

Each year, BCSA will
Financia have clean audits Independent financial

| Goal 1 absent of any cited audits Met
issues.
Each year, BCSA will
Financia cover its expenses Monthly financial Met
| Goal 2 and operate without  statements
deficit.
Financia
| Goal 3
Financia
| Goal 4
Financia
| Goal 5

7. Do have more financial goals No
to add?

Thank you.
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ﬁ Entry 4 Expenditures per Child

Created: 07/19/2019 -« Last updated: 07/30/2019

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTSSection Heading

Financial Information

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures
Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child
To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-

19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enroliment.
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the
Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website

at: http://www.pl2.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf.

Line 1: Total Expenditures 9155072
Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 424

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 21582
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2. Administrative Expenditures per Child
To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per

Child” first add together the following:

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses)

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must
be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the
activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also
includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program.

Notes:
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the Audit Guide
can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations:

http:/www.pl12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.

Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations.

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services

Cost (Row) 489285
Line 2: Management and General Cost 398501
(Column)

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 887786
Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End 3032

FTE student enrollment

Thank you.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLP
551 FIFTH AVENUE - SUITE 400, NEW YORK, NY 10176
212-697-2299 FAX:212-949-1768

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
Bronx Charter School for the Arts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bronx Charter School for the
Arts (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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CERTIFED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLP

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Bronx Charter School for the Arts as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2019, on our consideration of Bronx Charter School for the Arts’ internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Bronx Charter School for the Arts’ internal

control over financial reporting and compliance.
| i
+ Can, XZPFP

New York, New York
October 28, 2019




BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 1b and 8)
Unconditional promises to give (Notes 1c and 4)
Without donor restrictions
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property and equipment (Notes 1f and 5)
Security deposit (Note 6)
Security deposit - capital expense reserve account (Note 6)

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Salaries, payroll taxes and benefits payable
Deferred lease credit (Notes 1g and 6)
Deferred rent (Notes 1g and 6)
Total Liabilities

Commitment and Contingency (Note 6)

Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions
Board desighated (Note 3a)
Other
Total Without Donor Restrictions
With donor restrictions (Note 3b)
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See notes to financial statements.

2019 2018
$1,950,238 $1,5667,291
123,698 253,057
25,459 34,704
37,647 62,999
401,198 164,771
170,000 170,000
50,776 52,278
$2,759,016 $2,305,100
$ 327,935 $ 159,197
433,031 340,378
160,713 192,856
457,738 483,439
1,378,417 1,175,870
425,000 425,000
804,599 379,230
1,220,599 804,230
150,000 325,000
1,379,599 1,129,230
$2,759,016 $2,305,100
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Increase in net assets $ 250,369 $ 288,327
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 83,054 32,624
Deferred rent (25,701) (5,229)
Deferred lease credit (32,143) (32,143)
(Increase) decrease in:
Unconditional promises to give 129,359 9,633
Accounts receivable 9,245 (6,491)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 25,352 5,059
Security deposit - capital expense reserve account 1,502 3,047
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 168,738 82,066
Salaries, payroll taxes and benefits payable 92,653 26,151
Deferred resident student enrollment revenue - (6,234)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 702,428 396,710
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (319,481) (93,457)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 382,947 303,253
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,667,291 1,264,038
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $1,950,238 $1,567,291

See notes to financial statements.




Note 1 -

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a-

Organization
Bronx Charter School for the Arts (‘BCSA”) is an education not-for-profit institution

formed to operate a charter school in accordance with an agreement with the Board
of Regents of the University of the State of New York under a provisional charter
valid for a fourth term of five years commencing July 1, 2015.

BCSA is a public elementary school that opened in the South Bronx in September
2003. The school is founded on the principle that art education is a catalyst for the
academic and social success of all students. BCSA began with 160 students in
grades K-3 during the school year beginning September 2003, and has grown to
serve approximately 300 students in grades K-5. The Bronx Arts Middle School
opened in August 2018 with 118 6™ grade students in the Soundview section of the
Bronx, a ten-minute walk from the BCSA elementary school.

b - Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, BCSA considers all highly liquid debt
instruments, including money market accounts, to be cash equivalents.

Contributions and Unconditional Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to BCSA,
that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor
are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions
expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Financial Statement Presentation

BCSA's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, which require BCSA to report information regarding
its financial position and activities according to the following net asset
classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may be
expended for any purpose in performing the primary objective of BCSA. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of BCSA's management and Board of
Trustees.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors.
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met
by actions of BCSA or passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained

in perpetuity.




Note 1 -

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

e -

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the term of the lease.

Rent Expense
BCSA records rent expense associated with its facility on a straight-line basis over

the life of the lease (Note 6). The difference between the straight-line amount and
the amount actually paid during the year is recorded as a liability and an expense in
the accompanying financial statements. The deferred lease credit is credited
towards rent expense over the life of the lease (Note 6).

Tax Status

Bronx Charter School for the Arts is a not-for-profit organization exempt from
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
has been designated as an organization which is not a private foundation.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable
to more than one program or support function. Therefore, these expenses require
allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are
allocated include personnel services costs, fringe benefits and payroll taxes,
consulting services, rent, repairs and maintenance, insurance, utilities, supplies and
materials and depreciation, which are allocated on the basis of employee time and
effort.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In 2018, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-
14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-
for-Profit Entities. The ASU amends the previous reporting model for nonprofit
organizations and enhances their required disclosures. The major changes include:
(a) requiring the presentation of only two classes of net assets now entitled “net
assets without donor restrictions” and “net assets with donor restrictions;” (b)
requiring the disclosure of quantitative and qualitative information regarding liquidity
and availability of resources; (c) requiring that all nonprofits present an analysis of
expenses by function and nature and disclose the methods used to allocate costs;
(d) modifying other financial statement reporting requirements and disclosures
intended to increase the usefulness of nonprofit financial statements. As permitted
under the ASU in the year of adoption, the Organization opted to not disclose
liquidity and availability information for 2018.




Note 1 -

Note 2 -

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

j- Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)." The core
principles of ASU 2016-02 change the way organizations will account for their
leases by recognizing lease assets and related liabilities on the statement of
financial position for all leases with terms longer than twelve months and disclosing
key information about leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2020. The Organization is currently evaluating
the impact of ASU 2016-02 on its financial statements.

k - Subsequent Events
BCSA has evaluated subsequent events through October 28, 2019, the date that
the financial statements are considered available to be issued.

Information Reqarding Liquidity and Availability

BCSA operates with a balanced budget for each fiscal year based on the revenues
expected to be available to fund anticipated expenses. BCSA considers general
expenditures to consist of all expenses related to its ongoing program activities, and the
expenses related to general and administrative and fundraising activities undertaken to
support those activities.

BCSA regularly monitors liquidity to meet its operating needs and other commitments
and obligations, while seeking to maximize the investment of its available funds.
Management prepares regular cash flow projections to determine liquidity needs, and
has a policy to maintain liquid financial assets on an ongoing basis sufficient to cover
90 days of general expenditures. Financial assets in excess of daily cash requirements
are invested in interest-bearing accounts.

10



BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Note 2 - Information Regarding Liquidity and Availability (continued)

BCSA's financial assets as of June 30, 2019 available within one year to meet cash
needs for general expenditures are summarized as follows:

Financial Assets at Year-End:

Cash and cash equivalents $1,950,238
Unconditional promises to give 123,698
Accounts receivable 25,459

Total Financial Assets 2,099,395

Less Amounts Not Available to be Used Within One Year:
Net assets with donor restrictions subject to expenditure for

specific purposes or passage of time (150,000)
Plus: Net assets with purpose and time restrictions
expected to be met in less than one year 150,000
Board designated fund (425,000)
Financial Assets Available to Meet General
Expenditures Over the Next Twelve Months $1.674.395

In addition to these financial assets available within one year, BCSA’'s board
designated fund could be made available at any time to meet cash needs for general
expenditures at the discretion of the Board.

Note 3 - Net Assets

a - Board Designated
BCSA established a board designated fund to promote its long-term financial
stability.

b - Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted to future programs and periods and
are related to the expansion of Bronx Arts Schools.

Note 4 - Promises to Give

a - Unconditional Promises to Give
Unconditional promises to give are due within one year. Uncollectible promises are
expected to be insignificant.




Note 4 -

Note 5 -

Note 6 -

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Promises to Give (continued)

b - Conditional Promises to Give
During the year ended June 30, 2019, BCSA received a $975,000 grant, of which
$150,000 was recognized as revenue in 2019. The remaining $825,000 is subject
to the achievement of specific milestones specified in the grant agreement and,
accordingly, has not been recognized in the accompanying financial statements.

Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at June 30 is as follows:

Life 2019 2018

Computer equipment Syears $ 263,366 $189,932
Furniture and other office equipment 5-7 years 390,370 313,482
Leasehold improvements Life of lease 358,912 196,431
Teaching materials 3 years 55,298 55,298
Visual arts equipment 5 years 2,561 2,561
Musical instruments 5 years 39.818 33,140

1,110,325 790,844
Less: Accumulated depreciation (709.,127) (626,073)

$ 401,198 $164,771

Net Lease

BCSA leases the building located at 950-954 Longfellow Avenue, Bronx, NY from Civic
Builders (the “Owner”) under the terms of a net lease amended in July of 2010. The
lease expires June 30, 2024, with a ten-year renewal option. The annual fixed rent of
$540,012 increases by 3% cumulatively each year on August 1. In addition, the
landlord paid BCSA $450,000, which was recorded as a deferred lease credit and is
credited towards rent expense, over the life of the lease.

As part of the amendment, BCSA is required to fund $25,000 into a tenant capital
expense reserve account, on July 1 of each year. BCSA is entitled to be reimbursed for
repairs and replacements pursuant to its lease obligations up to the balance available
in the Reserve. The Owner may use proceeds in the account to pay for any repairs and
replacements required to be performed by BCSA if BCSA fails to do so. After expiration
of the lease, remaining funds in the Reserve will be refunded to BCSA. In the event of
default, landlord will keep the funds. During 2018, BCSA deposited an additional
$25,000 which relates to its reserved deposit for 2019.

12



Note 7 -

Note 8 -

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Resident Student Enroliment

BCSA's per pupil allocation is determined by the New York State Department of
Education using New York State’s charter school funding formula.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

BCSA maintains cash balances at various institutions insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation.

13
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLP
551 FIFTH AVENUE - SUITE 400, NEW YORK, NY 10176
212-697-2299 FAX:212-949-1768

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees of
Bronx Charter School for the Arts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of Bronx Charter School for the Arts (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 28, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Bronx
Charter School for the Arts' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Bronx Charter School for the Arts' internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

15
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CERTIFED PUBLIC ARCCOUNTAMNTS, LLP

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bronx Charter School for the Arts'
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.
ﬁ(éé ¥ (23.4.4, - -l

New York, New York
October 28, 2019
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAMNTS, LLP
551 FIFTH AVEMUE - SUITE 400, NEW YORK, NY 10176

212-697-2299 FAX:212-949-1768

Independent Auditors’ Report on Communication
of Internal Control Matters Identified in the Audit

To the Board of Trustees
of Bronx Charter School for the Arts

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Bronx Charter School
for the Arts (the “Organization”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we considered Bronx Charter School for the Arts’ internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the
Board of Trustees and others within the Organization, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

New York, New York
October 22, 2019
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Bronx Charter School of the Arts
Statement of Financial Position

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Contributions and other receivables
Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Building and Equipment, net
Restricted Cash
Security Deposits
Other Non-Current Assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits
Current Portion of Loan Payable
Due to Related Parties
Refundable Advances
Deferred Revenue
Other Current Liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year
Deferred Rent
Due to Related Party
Other Long-Term Liabilities
TOTAL LONG-TERM

TOTAL LIABILITIES

as of June 30

2019 2018

1,950,238 1,567,291
123,698 253,057
25,459 34,704
37,647 62,999
2.137,042 1,018,051
401,198 164,771
170,000 170,000
50,776 52278
621,974 387,049
2,759,016 2,305,100
327,935 159,197
433,031 340,378
760,966 499,575
618,451 676,295
618,451 676,295
1,379,417 1,175,870



NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$

1,229,599
150,000

1,379,599

2,759,016

804,230
325,000

1,129,230

2,305,100




Bronx Charter School of the Arts
Statement of Activities
as of June 30

2019 2018
Unrestricted Temporarily Total Total
Restricted

OPERATING REVENUE

State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed $ 6,504,312 $ $ 6,504,312 4,514,265

State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 1,359,620 1,359,620 797,413

State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue - - -

Federal Grants 677,017 677,017 382,274

State and City Grants - - 53,688

Other Operating Income - - -

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 285,130 285,130 273,009
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 8,826,079 8,826,079 6,020,649
EXPENSES

Program Services

Regular Education $ 5,461,264 $ $ 5,461,264 3,730,282

Special Education 2,385,020 2,385,020 1,760,607

Other Programs - - -

Total Program Services 7,846,284 7,846,284 5,490,889

Management and general 1,012,602 1,012,602 764,789
Fundraising 254,620 254,620 181,299
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,113,506 9,113,506 6,436,977
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS (287,427) (287,427) (416,328)
SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

Interest and Other Income $ 29,960 $ $ 29,960 11,327

Contributions and Grants 507,836 507,836 688,328

Fundraising Support - - -

Investments - - -

Donated Services - - 5,000

Other Support and Revenue - - -
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 537,796 537,796 704,655
Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal $ - $ $ - =
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 250,369 250,369 288,327
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR $ -5 $ - =

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS -



NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 250,369 § - $ 250,369 $ 288,327




Bronx Charter School of the Arts

Statement of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Revenues from School Districts
Accounts Receivable
Due from School Districts
Depreciation
Grants Receivable
Due from NYS
Grant revenues
Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Liabilities
Contributions and fund-raising activities
Miscellaneous sources
Deferred Revenue
Interest payments
Other
Other

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

as of June 30

2019 2018
250,369 $ 288,327
9,245 (6,491)
25,210 (4,748)
129,359 9,533
25,352 5,059
168,738 82,066
92,653 26,151
1,502 (3,187)
702,428 $ 396,710
$
(319,481) (93,457)
(319,481) ' $ (93,457)
$
382,947 $ 303,253
1,567,291 1,264,038
1,950,238 $ 1,567,291




Personnel Services Costs
Administrative Staff Personnel
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel

Total Salaries and Staff

Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes

Retirement

Management Company Fees

Legal Service

Accounting / Audit Services

Other Purchased / Professional /

Consulting Services

Building and Land Rent / Lease

Repairs & Maintenance

Insurance

Utilities

Supplies / Materials

Equipment / Furnishings

Staff Development

Marketing / Recruitment

Technology

Food Service

Student Services

Office Expense

Depreciation

OTHER

Total Expenses

No. of
Positions

27.00
51.00

3.00
81.00

Bronx Charter School of the Arts
Statement of Functional Expenses
as of June 30

2019
Program Services Supporting Services
Regular Special Other Total Fundraising Management Total
Education Education Education and General
$ $ $ $ $ $
943,036 451,903 1,394,939 139,697 440,224 579,921
2,341,735 921,783 3,263,518 - - -
60,203 15,051 75,254 - 49,060 49,060
3,344,974 1,388,737 4,733,711 139,697 489,284 628,981
788,379 327,312 1,115,691 32,925 115,320 148,245
- - - - 4,255 4,255
192,499 101,484 293,983 14,776 178,153 192,929
404,460 167,920 572,380 16,892 59,162 76,054
54,206 22,505 76,711 2,264 9,580 11,844
32,364 13,436 45,800 1,352 4,734 6,086
62,732 26,044 88,776 2,620 9,176 11,796
68,510 40,679 109,189 277 970 1,247
11,625 7,125 18,750 - - -
67,151 41,157 108,308 - 38,409 38,409
37,689 23,099 60,788 - 6,754 6,754
31,819 14,316 46,135 1,095 3,837 4,932
144,273 88,425 232,698 - 47,904 47,904
70,976 43,500 114,476 - - -
86,410 52,961 139,371 3,097 12,389 15,486
51,805 21,508 73,313 2,163 7,578 9,741
11,392 4,812 16,204 37,462 25,097 62,559
$ 5461264 $ 2385020 $ 7,846,284 $ 254,620 $ 1,012,602 $ 1,267,222




2018

Total
$

1,974,860 1,306,829
3,263,518 2,301,789
124,314 75,171
5,362,692 3,683,789
1,263,936 892,815
4,255 8,813
486,912 221,659
648,434 649,942
88,555 108,454
51,886 49,457
100,572 83,478
110,436 65,429
18,750 7,475
146,717 95,823
67,542 35,888
51,067 26,914
280,602 250,912
114,476 64,738
154,857 78,954
83,054 32,624
78,763 79,813

9,113,506 § 6,436,977




E Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs

Created: 07/19/2019 -« Last updated: 10/31/2019

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the
items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action
plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the
report); etc.

Section Heading

1. Management Letter

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109818720/8mMIlunnVv3/

Explanation for not uploading (No response)
the Management Letter.

2. Form 990
https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109818720/FINDgRIBTE/

Explanation for not uploading An extension has been granted.
the Form 990.

3. Federal Single Audit

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements.

(No response)
Explanation for not uploading N/A. The school did not expend $750,000 in federal funding.

the Federal Single Audit.

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading N/A. The school did not receive CSP funding.

the procedure report.

1/2



5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the
escrow account per school is $100,000.

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading (No response)
the Escrow evidence.

6. Corrective Action Plan

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must
include:

a. The person responsible

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken
c. Description of the action taken

d. Evidence of implementation (if available)

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading If required, a Corrective Action Plan will be submitted with the
the Corrective Action Plan. FY19 Audit.

2/2
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAMNTS, LLP
551 FIFTH AVEMUE - SUITE 400, NEW YORK, NY 10176

212-697-2299 FAX:212-949-1768

Independent Auditors’ Report on Communication
of Internal Control Matters Identified in the Audit

To the Board of Trustees
of Bronx Charter School for the Arts

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Bronx Charter School
for the Arts (the “Organization”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we considered Bronx Charter School for the Arts’ internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the
Board of Trustees and others within the Organization, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

New York, New York
October 22, 2019



Form 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File a
(Rev. January 2019) Exempt Organization Return I

Department of the Treasury P> File a separate application for each return.
Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form8868 for the latest information.

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the
forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit
Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic
filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/e-file-providers/e-file-for-charities-and-non-profits.

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).

All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns.

Enter filer’s identifying number

Type or Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions. Employer identification number (EIN) or
print
| BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS ]
ZL'ZZQ:?N Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions. Social security number (SSN)
fingyow | 1440 STORY AVENUE
instructions. | - City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.
BRONX, NY 10473

Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each returny ... | 0 | 1 |
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code |lIs For Code
Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 990-T (corporation) 07
Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (other than individual) 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12
MIRIAM RACCAH
® The books are in the care of > 1 4 4 O STORY AVENUE - BRONX ’ NY 1 O 4 7 3
Telephone No. p> _— Fax No. p
® |f the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check thisbox .. >
® |f this is for a Group Return, enter the organization’s four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this is for the whole group, check this
box P . If it is for part of the group, check this box P and attach a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for.
1 | request an automatic 6-month extension of time until MAY 15 ’ 2020 , to file the exempt organization return for
the organization named above. The extension is for the organization’s return for:
| 4 calendar year or
p X tax year beginning JUL 1, 2018 , and ending JUN 30, 2019
2  Ifthe tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: Initial return Final return
Change in accounting period
3a |If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less
any nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a| $ 0.
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b | $ 0.
¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by
using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c| $ 0.

Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment
instructions.

LHA  For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2019)

823841 12-19-18

11391010 759420 BRONXCHAR 2018.04030 BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR TH BRONXCH1



25 |

Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information
requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined
file.

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTSSection Heading

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact
Name Email Phone

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit Contact  School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm

Chris Bellano, Lutz &
17
Carr

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced
financial services firm.

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years with
Person Address Firm

Charter

SCh.OOI Steve Reid

Business

Management

1/1



New York State Education Department

Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
Board of Regents

2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE

Enter information into the GRAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on
that particular item

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would
reference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.




Bronx Charter School of the Arts

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enrollment

Total Paid Student Enroliment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES
Per Pupil Revenue
District of Location
School District 2 (Enter Name)
School District 3 (Enter Name)
School District 4 (Enter Name)
School District 5 (Enter Name)

Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus

Other
Other State Revenue

CY Per Pupil Rate

9,697,993 1,743,164 - - 5,230 11,446,387
6,995,139 2,649,031 - 200,661 1,374,056 11,218,887
2,702,854 (905,867) - (200,661) (1,368,826) 227,500

REGULAR
EDUCATION

SPECIAL
EDUCATION

OTHER

SUPPORT SERVICES

FUNDRAISING

MANAGEMENT &
GENERAL

442 84 526

PROGRAM SERVICES

$16,150.00

8,495,952

8,495,952

8,495,952 8,495,952

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING

IDEA Special Needs

Title |

Title Funding - Other

School Food Service (Free Lunch)

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation
Other

Other Federal Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising

Erate Reimbursement

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)
Food Service (Income from meals)

Text Book

Other Local Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS
Executive Management

[ =] 1,418,277 | =] -1 - 1,418,277
33,863 7,943 - - - 41,806
8,529,815 1,426,220 9,956,035
- 44,834 = : = 44,834
218,092 51,157 - - - 269,249
30,394 7,129 - - - 37,523
162,000 38,000 - - - 200,000
410,485 141,121 551,606
475,551 111,549 - - - 587,100
14,464 3,393 - - - 17,857
- - - - 3,323 3,323
259,548 60,882 - - - 320,430
8,129 = = 1,907 10,036
757,693 175,824 5,230 938,746
9,697,993 1,743,164 5,230 11,446,387
No. of Positions
1.00] 121,292 30,323 21,659 43,319 216,593




Bronx Charter School of the Arts

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue 9,697,993 1,743,164 - 5,230 11,446,387

Total Expenses 6,995,139 2,649,031 200,661 1,374,056 11,218,887

Net Income 2,702,854 (905,867) (200,661) (1,368,826) 227,500

Actual Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES

SUPPORT SERVICES

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL
Instructional Management 3.00 181,792 45,448 32,463 64,926 324,628
Deans, Dirsctors & Coordinators 5.00 397,537 99,384 70,989 141,977 709,887
CFO / Director of Finance 1.00 54,530 13,633 9,738 19,475 97,375
Operation / Business Manager 2.00 60,000 15,000 - 50,000 125,000
Administrative Staff 1.00 152,022 38,005 - 760,110 950,137
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 967,172 241,793 134,848 1,079,806 2,423,620
INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular 35.00 2,213,366 553,342 - - 2,766,708
Teachers - SPED 2.00 - 303,395 - - 303,395
Substitute Teachers = = = = -
Teaching Assistants 3.00 141,532 35,383 - - 176,915
Specialty Teachers 15.00 687,420 171,855 - - 859,275
Aides = o - = -
Therapists & Counselors 4.00 62,727 250,906 - - 313,633
Other 2.00 98,978 24,744 - - 123,722
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 3,204,023 1,339,625 4,543,648
NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse = = o = = =
Librarian = = o = = =
Custodian = o = =
Security = - - -
Other 195,617 48,904 - - 244,521
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 195,617 48,904 244,521

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

1.00

4,366,812

1,630,323

134,848

1,079,806

7,211,789

Payroll Taxes 385,820 165,352 12,248 48,993 612,413
Fringe / Employee Benefits 509,756 218,467 16,183 64,731 809,136
Retirement / Pension 69,300 29,700 2,200 8,800 110,000

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

964,876 413,518 30,631 122,524 1,531,549

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 5,331,688 2,043,841 165,479 1,202,330 8,743,338
CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit - - - 25,000 25,000
Legal = = = 6,000 6,000

Management Company Fee
Nurse Services

Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services




Bronx Charter School of the Arts

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enrollment

Total Paid Student Enroliment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
9,697,993 1,743,164 - 5,230 11,446,387
6,995,139 2,649,031 200,661 1,374,056 11,218,887
2,702,854 (905,867) (200,661) (1,368,826) 227,500

442 84 526

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL
Special Ed Services = - - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title 1) = - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 178,349 76,435 5,662 22,647 283,093
TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 178,349 76,435 5,662 53,647 314,093
SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses 1,890 810 60 240 3,000
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 24,300 5,700 30,000
Special Ed Supplies & Materials = o - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks 17,820 4,180 - - 22,000
Supplies & Materials other - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 11,989 2,812 14,801
Telephone 12,600 5,400 400 1,600 20,000
Technology 23,428 10,040 744 2,975 37,187
Student Testing & Assessment 25,434 5,966 31,400
Field Trips 8,253 1,936 - 10,189
Transportation (student) = - - - -
Student Services - other 152,998 35,889 188,887
Office Expense 91,350 39,150 2,900 11,600 145,000
Staff Development 91,350 39,150 2,900 11,600 145,000
Staff Recruitment 12,600 5,400 400 1,600 20,000
Student Recruitment / Marketing = o - - -
School Meals / Lunch 222,947 52,296 - - 275,243
Travel (Staff) 16,326 6,997 518 2,073 25,915
Fundraising = - - - -
Other 91,494 21,462 112,956
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 804,780 237,188 7,922 31,688 1,081,578
FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance 38,866 16,657 1,234 4,935 61,692
Janitorial 8,820 3,780 280 1,120 14,000
Building and Land Rent / Lease 458,957 196,696 14,570 58,280 728,503
Repairs & Maintenance 91,116 39,050 2,893 11,570 144,628
Equipment / Furniture -
Security = - - - -
Utilities 59,850 25,650 1,900 7,600 95,000
TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 657,608 281,832 20,876 83,506 1,043,823
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 22,715 9,735 721 2,884 36,055
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

6,995,139

2,649,031

200,661

1,374,056

11,218,887




Bronx Charter School of the Arts

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue 9,697,993 1,743,164 - 5,230 11,446,387

Total Expenses 6,995,139 2,649,031 200,661 1,374,056 11,218,887

Net Income 2,702,854 (905,867) (200,661) (1,368,826) 227,500

Actual Student Enrollment - - -
Total Paid Student Enroliment 442 84

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*

District of Location

REGULAR
EDUCATION

REGULAR

EDUCATION

PROGRAM SERVICES

SPECIAL

EDUCATION

SPECI

EDUCATION

OTHER

ENROLLED

SUPPORT SERVICES

FUNDRAISING

MANAGEMENT &
GENERAL

School District 2 (Enter Name)

School District 3 (Enter Name)

School District 4 (Enter Name)

School District 5 (Enter Name)
TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note ti when licabl

Assumes total 526 students

20-60% = 21 students. Less than 60% =63 students.

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

US DOE 5yr Grant

200K New School Funds for new charter, 110K Additional Board Members- 3 each
donating $20k, 120K BCSA plans to host 4 fundraisers plus Spring Salon for the
school year, 100K Expansion income & 57K Board General Giving

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY 19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note ti when licabl

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase

Assumes hiring an Art Director for the elementary school & Assumes 2.5% COLA
increase

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase and hiring a recruitment manager at $80k and hiring a
receptionist at $43k

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase and the middle school hiring 8 new teachers for the
new grade

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase

Assumes 2.5% COLA increase

Bonus & Extended Day Salaries

FICA & Unemployment Insurance

Fringe Benefits

403B

Based on actual fees




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

Projection based on FY 19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY 19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY 19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on TC and PD Institute

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY 19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals

Projection based on FY19 Actuals and Contract

Projection based on FY19 Actuals and Contract

Projection based on repair and maintenance work needed at the elementary school

Projection based on FY19 Actuals and Contract




Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: *)
Aelove  Lons Pps com

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation): '

e i C:: o ' ' y
SSre o« ( i 2 op) —uy e Lo

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).
=

G S~ EA

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes < No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (‘CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes f% No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.



4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that

you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
/ IS
k" N D(N L :_’.-: h ,,.-———-—ﬂt--‘~

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting | business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Stebs
the school(s) d business household holding an taket': c
conducted interest in the auoid
organization cortiat
conducting business interesi
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
y =
7”L——~N |z _ B RS \
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Signatdre /Dat/e’

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

ast revise












Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

Lord” Deancamany

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

2. Are you an _employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes ,X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to | Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Please u/'\/zow/uy'\v‘one” if applicablle. Do not leave|this space blank.

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting | business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steps
the school(s) d business household holding an tak es to
conducted interest in the avold
organization 5
; : conflict of
conducting business int t
with the school(s)and | ""ereS
the nature of the
interest
Please writle A/OMI] applicable. Do not leave this spaci{ blank

T o cama D 7/;?0?%/&7

Signatue = S Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:
Denise Brecher

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

2. Are you an gmployee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,

the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?
X
Yes No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction of interest, engaging in
(e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Please write “N(Npe,neif applicablle. Do not leave|this space blank.

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee Steps
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate taken to
business with | conducte the family member of avoid
the school(s) d business household holding an | conflict of
conducted interest in the interest

organization
conducting business
with the school(s) and




the nature of the
interest
None None
7/17/19
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:
=" oA \
Ay 2 U éf: GC L Zcwa )tl Ve

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

)g/'dw. X é[m/.iqg ‘5;/11‘;)&( &_//'/("/_ /fl’f“}'?’

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes. for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services ("CMO~), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do vou serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal properiy to the said entities?

Yes XNo

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4. |dentify each interestitransaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board. and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment

status. salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
= on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
. \ / participate in you
[ / __discussjon) - 2l

—

>

r
fopiddafe.

{Nohe” if éppligablle. o no eaveA[hiS M@blank.
l

e —

/

Please writ‘c?

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write *None.”

" Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting | business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of St
the school(s) d business | household holding an tak::!:o
conducted interest in the PR
organization :
2 : conflict of
conducting business niforest
with the school(s)and | '™
“f‘\ 2 the nature of the
| \ / | (/] J interest
Il. ’l, | Fj o
I [ / ;: / :L/-
l B [N/ |L/,F~
/ l :
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Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided befow will be redacted

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

R. Vient Hllechwmun

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Dioaxy Clherbv Sehoo| po' bhe Arl-s

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).
I :%)

Formar Trostee (term enp.‘/ec(

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.







Organization_. Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steps
the school(s) d business household holding an taker? to
conducted interest in the avoid
organization sonflict ol
conducting business iitiost
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
1 i B interest |
Plea vrifje “No iffapplicab / k
RS Noae VAL None N |A
Q) \MN_Q\ 42214
Signatyré \ Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

Patricia Kennedy

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, if
the charter school is the only school operated by the education corporation):

Bronx Charter School for the Arts List all positions held on
the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer,
parent representative).

Board member

1. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _x_ No
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

2. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQ”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes x_No
If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you
in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by
the education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and




in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such interest
or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions
2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)

4,

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,

partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization
conducting
business with
the school(s)

Nature of

business

conducte
d

Approximat
e value of
the
business
conducted

Name of Trustee
and/or immediate
family member of

household holding an
interest in the
organization
conducting business
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

Steps
taken to
avoid
conflict of
interest




Patricia Kennedy
Signature Date 7/30/19

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

Nan, Thosas \.a’ptz.

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Rront Clharis School f\,f e Acks

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Vi Chaiv

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, andfor an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“‘CMO"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that

you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or fransaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on {e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
oo ! . v
f/ 014 gml—ﬁr mﬁmﬁ in | Rodasy Lipea,
,ﬂamg% Contrefing !

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,

partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of
the school(s) d business household holding an
conducted interest in the

organization
conducting business
with the school{s) and
the nature of the
interest

Steps
taken to
avoid
conflict of
interest

None







hterest by a Current or Proposed Board of _‘!

" Disclosure of Financial |
Trustees Member Al

—————————

= bricODsonw

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (th
if the charter school i the only school opera

corete 2 i Chado ool G dle Arts

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board") (e.9. president, treasurer, parent representaﬁve).

e Charter School Name,
ted by the education

2. Are you an gmployee of any school operated by the education corporation?

Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,

education corporation, and/or an entity that provides co
management services (“CMO"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which

contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes o

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. S




4. |dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) ﬁtar:
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who lNeool o)
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter :dCh t%we
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on no
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been ed
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answer t
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employmen

status, salary, etc.

Steps taken to Name of person
ok :'a‘:u':':iglf avol':l a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
) discussion)
LYONK.

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that
doing business with the school(s) through a management or s
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your |

the organization, and the relationship between such or
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “ﬂom |

Organization | Natur
conducting | t
business with | con
the school(s) |
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Signature SR Ll

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of

Trustees Member

Name:
GRAHANM POWIS

Name of Charter School Educgation Cor'p_oration {the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board") {e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

VICE CHAIR

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

1f Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the positit)n(-s)'_y_ou
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

NA

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you setve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, of.does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not fimited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your siart date.

NA




4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period ptior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note- that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to | Name of person
financial ‘avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interestitransacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you -and/or
your immediate family member(s} or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement; please identify only the hame of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” '




Organization
conducting
business with
the school(s)

Nature of

business

conducte
d

Approximat
e value of
the
business
conducted

Name of Trustee
and/or immediate
family member of

household holding an
interest in the
organization
conducting business
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

Steps
taken to
avoid
conflict of
interest

Signature

Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of Trustees

Member

Name:

Barbara H Scoftt

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Bronx Charter School for the Arts

1.

2,

List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). Board member,
Secretary

Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X_No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)




operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction of interest, engaging in
(e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not | relationship to you
participate in
discussion)
None

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat | Name of Trustee and/

conducting | business | e value of | orimmediate family
business conducte the member of

with the d business household holding Steps
- - taken to
school(s) conducted an interest in the avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business | .
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest




Signature
Date July 22, 2019

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

Ahmad Sheikh

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, if
the charter school is the only school operated by the education corporation):

Bronx Charter School for the Arts

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ANo

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes ¥ No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

4. |dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you




in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by
the education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and
in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such interest
or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions
2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in

on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to

participate in you

discussion)

Please write ”.”()126[(‘(1 ble. Do not leave this space blank.

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Sting
the school(s) d business household holding an taik pt
conducted interest in the axen to
S avoid
organization "
. . conflict of
conducting business fiterest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest




nfone

AW

[SigRatuigrite “None” 1‘7}"{(/;)];)2’1'(‘(/ ble. Do not leaviPatRis space blank.

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:
Katherine Trager

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

__The Bronx Charter School for the
Arts

1.

2.

3.

List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Member of the Board of Trustees

Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes x __ No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQ”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes x No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




leas

4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)

e write “None” [f applicable. Do not leave this splace blank.

None

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

None



Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee

conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steps
the school(s) d business household holding an P
- - taken to
conducted interest in the .
N avoid
organization -
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

None

Please write “None” iff applicable. Do not leave this space blank.

Katherine Trager July 22, 2019
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member — Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Daniel Vislocky

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Bronx Charter School of the Arts

1.

2.

3.

List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

N/A

Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ x No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes Xx No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.



4,

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)

None

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee

conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Stens
the school(s) d business household holding an P
- - taken to
conducted interest in the -
. avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
5/29/19
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018












Entry 8 BOT Table

25 |

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide
information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees.

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Trustee Position Committ  Voting Number Start End Date Board
Name on the ee Member of Terms  Date of of Meetings
and Board Affiliation Per By Served Current Current Attended
Email S Laws Term Term During
Address (Y/N) (MM/DD/Y (MM/DD/Y 2018 19
YYY) YYY)
Charles
Whites
. 06/01/20 06/01/20
- Chair Program  Yes 4 19 21 9
Graham
POWIS  Vice Nominalh | ; 10/1/201  10/01/20 .
- Chair 9 7 19
Finance
Arlene
Bascom Develop
Treasurer ment Yes 2 08/01/20  08/01/20 8
: 17 19
Finance
Lori
Biancam
ano .
Finance 20 10/01/20
Treasurer Develop  v.q 5 10701/ / 9
Barbara Program
Scott Secretary Develop Yes 2 07/01/20  07/01/20 11
ment
Aisha Bell
Parent 06/01/20 06/01/20
- Rep Program Yes 4 19 21 7

1/4



Denise
Brecher
| IIIIIIIII
Susan

Geisenhe
imer

Patricia
Kennedy

Trustee/M
ember

Trustee/M
ember

Trustee/M
ember

la. Are there more than 9

members of the Board of

Trustees?

Develop
ment
Program

Develop
ment
Nominati

ng

Develop
ment

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

2/4

10/01/20
18

07/01/20
18

05/01/20
18

10/01/20
20

07/01/20
20

05/01/20
20

10



1b. Current Board Member Information

10

11

12

13

14

15

Trustee Position
Name on the
and Board
Email

Address

Noni
Thomas
Lopez

Trustee/M
ember

Eric
Qsorio Trustee/M

ember

Ahmad
Sheikh

Trustee/M
ember

Katherine

rager Trustee/M

ember

Daniel

Vislocky

Trustee/M
ember

1c. Are there more than 15

members of the Board of

Trustees?

Committ
ee
Affiliation
s

Program

Program

TBD

Program
Develop
ment

Finance

No

Voting
Member
Per By
Laws
(Y/N)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

3/4

Number
of Terms
Served

Start
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

08/01/20
17

10/01/20
18

08/01/20
18

05/01/20
19

03/01/20
19

End Date
of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

08/01/20
19

10/01/20
20

08/01/20
20

05/01/20
21

03/01/20
21

Board
Meetings
Attended
During
2018 19

5 or less

5 or less

5 or less



2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response
relative to all trustees.

a. Total Number of BOT Members on

June 30, 2019 13
b.Total Number of Members Added >
During 2018 19
c. Total Number of Members who 1
Departed during 2018 19
d.Total Number of members in 2018 19,
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or 14
Minutes
3. Number of Board meetings 12
held during 2018-19
4. Number of Board meetings 12

scheduled for 2019-20

Thank you.

4/4



Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes

Last updated: 07/30/2019

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting
minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19
school year.

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS

Are all monthly BOT meeting No
minutes posted, which should

match the number of meetings

held during 2018-19 school year,

on the charter school's website?

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of
meetings held during the 2018-19 school year.

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file.

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110241717/wNFCVDEEJA/

1/1



Bronx Charter School for the Arts
Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, July 10, 2018

Location: Denise Brecher’s Home
515 E 85th Street, Apt 1E
New York, NY 10028

Meeting called to order at 6:35pm
Meeting adjourned at 7:25 pm

Called Meeting to Order
Roll Call:

Members Present: Charles Whites, Trent Hickman, Graham Powis, Lori Biancamano,
Denise Brecher, Aisha Bell, Barbara Scott, Arlene Bascom, and Patty Kennedy

Members Not Present: Eric Osorio, Susan Geisenheimer, Kathy Trager, Noni Thomas
Lopez, Ahmad Sheikh (pending State approval)

Management/Staff Present: Miriam Raccah, Jonea Thomas, Richard Gonzalez, Jill
Reinhardt, Karlene Cowan

I. General Business

The minutes of the June 2018 Board meeting were unanimously voted and
approved.

II. Nomination/Evaluation Committee Report

II1. Executive Director

Karlene presented updated Employee Handbook for review and approval. Changes
were made to bring the handbook into compliance with the NYS law. The Employee
Handbook was unanimously voted and approved.

Karlene also presented the new school year calendar, which includes the same
number of days of instruction but shifted vacation days to ensure adequate
preparation time for state testing.

The Middle School Ribbon Cutting event will be taking place August 30th from
11:30am to 1:30pm to launch the school and engage the community.



IV. Program Committee Report

Richard Gonzalez gave a middle school update, including significant progress on
hiring and facilities maintenance.

Jonea Thomas gave a elementary school update, including the challenges in several
vacancies and the need to hire teachers for school year 2018-2019. State test scores

will be available in August.

Program committee meetings will move to a quarterly call schedule rather than
monthly beginning in September.

V. Development Committee Report

Jill Reinhardt reminded the Board about multiple funding decisions slated for
August through October and gave an update on plans for the October 18th cocktail
reception including thanking Trent for agreeing to serve as the individual honoree.
Conversations are in process to identify a corporate and foundation honoree.
Development committee meetings will move to a quarterly call schedule rather
than monthly and staggered with the program committee calls to enable members
to serve on both committees effectively.

VI. Finance Committee Report

The meeting did not go into Executive Session.

The meeting adjourned at 7:25pm.



Bronx Charter School for the Arts
Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, August 14, 2018

Location: Zoom

Meeting called to order at 6:35pm
Meeting adjourned at 8:00 pm

Called Meeting to Order
Roll Call:

Members Present: Graham Powis, Eric Osorio, Susan Geisenheimer, Lori
Biancamano, Denise Brecher, Barbara Scott, Arlene Bascom, Kathy Trager, Patty
Kennedy

Members Not Present: Aisha Bell, Charles Whites, Trent Hickman, Noni Thomas
Lopez, Ahmad Sheikh (pending State approval)

Management/Staff Present: Miriam Raccah, Jonea Thomas, Richard Gonzalez, Jill
Reinhardt, Karlene Cowan, and Rossana Valdez

I. General Business
The minutes of the July 2018 Board meeting were unanimously voted and approved.
II. Development Committee Report

Jill Reinhardt reported that the Development Committee will meet quarterly rather
than monthly. She described the October 18 fundraising event. It will be a cocktail
reception in mid town with hor d’oeuvres and will honor Trent Hickman for his
Board service. There is also a possibility that Julie Wang would be honored as well
as The Toulmin Foundation. Jill briefly mentioned the April arts auction which
would involve donations from artists of their work.

III. Program Committee Report

Richard Gonzalez gave a middle school update. He said that the ribbon cutting at the
Middle School would begin at 11:30 on August 30. Bronx Arts has reached out to all
the classroom namesakes to see if they can attend or send a representative. Richard
said that there were 115 students at the Middle School about 40% of whom are from
Bronx Arts elementary school.



Jonea Thomas gave an elementary school update. There are three faculty vacancies
in the upper elementary school. However, since each classroom has 2 teachers,
there will not be an issue of coverage at the start of the school year. Miriam said that
there was definitely a teacher shortage in the NYC area.

IV. Finance Committee Report

Lori Biancamano gave the financial report. The school is $300,000 over budget in
terms of revenue due to additional private grants and receiving more per student
from the State.

There was an Executive Session.

The meeting adjourned at 8:00pm.



Bronx Charter School for the Arts
Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

Location: Bronx Arts Middle School
1440 Story Avenue
Bronx, NY 10473

Meeting called to order at 6:40pm
Meeting adjourned at 8:15 pm

Called Meeting to Order

Roll Call:

Members Present: Charles Whites, Graham Powis, Eric Osorio via Zoom, Susan
Geisenheimer, Lori Biancamano, Aisha Bell, Denise Brecher, Barbara Scott via Zoom,

Noni Thomas Lopez, Kathy Trager

Members Not Present: Arlene Bascom, Trent Hickman, Patty Kennedy, Ahmad
Sheikh (pending State approval)

Management/Staff Present: Miriam Raccah, Jonea Thomas, Richard Gonzalez, Jill
Reinhardt, Karlene Cowan, Patty Rooney, Jahneel Small, Katie Duffield, Jennifer
Ciavirella, Lisselot Monegro, Ryan McCabe

I. General Business

The minutes of the August 2018 Board meeting were unanimously voted and
approved.

II. Program Committee Report

Richard Gonzalez gave the middle school update. He said that there are 122 students
enrolled; 34 of them are special ed. Richard then reviewed the curriculum.
Jonea Thomas gave the elementary school update.

III. Finance Committee Report

Lori Biancamano asked Jill Reinhardt to give a development committee report as

there was no finance committee report. CSBM is currently doing the numbers in the
absence of a head of finance.



IV. Development Committee Report

Jill Reinhardt reviewed the development budget. Jill outlined the April arts auction
which would involve donations from artists of their work.

V. Nominating Committee
Ahmad Sheikh’s paperwork is nearly complete. It is just missing his fingerprints.
There was an Executive Session.

The meeting adjourned at 8:15pm.



Bronx Charter School for the Arts
Minutes

Board of Trustees Monthly Meeting: October 9, 2018

Date and Time
Tuesday October 9, 2018 at 6:30 PM

Location
1440 Story Avenue Bronx, NY 10473

Trustees Present
Ahmad Sheikh, Barbara Scott, Charles Whites, Denise Brecher, Graham Powis,
Katherine Trager, Lori Biancamano, Patricia Kennedy, Trent Hickman

Trustees Absent
Aisha Bell, Arlene Bascom, Eric Osorio, Noni Lopez, Susan Geisenheimer

Guests Present

Jill Reinhardt, Johanne Javel, Jonea Thomas, Karlene Cowen, Miriam Raccah, Richard
Gonzalez

l. Opening Items
A. Record Attendance and Guests
B. Call the Meeting to Order
Charles Whites called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School
for the Arts to order on Tuesday Oct 9, 2018 @ 6:30 PM at 1440 Story Avenue

Bronx, NY 10473.
The meeting was held via ZOOM.

C. Public Session

D. Approve September Minutes
Graham Powis made a motion to approve minutes.

Powered by BoardOnTrack lof2



Bronx Charter School for the Arts - Board of Trustees Monthly Meeting: October 9, 2018 - Minutes - Tuesday October 9, 2018 at 6:30 PM

Patricia Kennedy seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.

Il. Nominating

A. Update
We are awaiting SED approval for Ahmad Sheikh. All materials have been
submitted

IIl. Governance Presentation

A. Marci Cornell-Fiest, Founder and CEO of Board on Track
Presentation of Board on Track Platform

IV. Operations

A. Dashboard
Karlene Cowan, Director of Operations, walked board through the latest
Dashboard as of 09/30

V. Programing

A. Middle School Report
Richard Gonzalez provided a broad update on Middle School

B. Elementary School Report
Jonea Thomas provided a broad update on Elementary School

V1. Finance

A. Financial Statement
Lori Biancamano presented August financials created by CSBM

VIl. Development

A. Development Update
Jill Reinhardt reported high-level details of the recently awarded, five-year,
$1,000,000 grant from the U.S. Department of Education explaining the grant
mostly underwrites Middle School staff positions. She also described preparations
for the end-of-calendar-year appeal and offered an Institutional Giving update
including submission timelines for several Foundation proposals.

VIII. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:00 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Johanne Javel
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts
Minutes

Board of Trustees Monthly Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday November 13, 2018 at 6:30 PM

Location
285 Madison Avenue, Suite 1800, New York, NY 10017

Trustees Present

Arlene Bascom, Barbara Scott, Charles Whites, Eric Osorio, Graham Powis, Katherine
Trager (remote), Lori Biancamano, Patricia Kennedy (remote), Susan Geisenheimer
(remote)

Trustees Absent
Ahmad Sheikh, Aisha Bell, Denise Brecher, Noni Lopez, Trent Hickman

Guests Present
Jill Reinhardt, Johanne Javel, Jonea Thomas, Karlene Cowan, Miriam Raccah, Richard
Gonzalez

. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests
Chris Bellando of Lutz and Carr was present on the call

B. Call the Meeting to Order

Charles Whites called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School
for the Arts to order on Tuesday Nov 13, 2018 @ 6:40 PM at 285 Madison
Avenue, Suite 1800, New York, NY 10017.

C. Public Session
No one attended from the public
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts - Board of Trustees Monthly Meeting - Minutes - Tuesday November 13, 2018 at 6:30 PM

D. Approve Minutes
Charles Whites made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees

Monthly Meeting: October 9, 2018 on 10-09-18.
Lori Biancamano seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Finance

A. 2017-2018 Audit Presentation
Chris Bellando of Lutz & Carr presented the results of the 2107 - 2018 fiscal
audit. An unqualified report will be issued. Lutz & Carr have prepared an
extension for the FORM 990; and will work to complete the 2017 FORM 990

before the deadline of the extension.

B. Corporate Credit Card
the board approved switching from the use of debit cards, and to obtain
corporate cards for the leadership staff - six cards (identify persons who will be
issued cards).

C. September 2018 Financial Report
Financial report through September 2018 was presented.

I1l. Nominating

A. Update
Ahmad Sheikh was approved by NYS Education Department on October 10, 2018

B. December Meeting
Barbara Scott will host the December meeting at her home

IV. Executive Director Presentation

A. Roll out of Board on Track
Miriam Raccah sought feedback on the roll out of Board on Track

B. Greenlighting for Next School
M. Raccah discussed Greenlighting a second elementary school

C. January Retreat

* M. Raccah discussed the January retreat
V. Operations

A. Dashboard
Karlene Cowan presented Dashboard

VI. Programing
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A. Middle School Report
Richard Gonzalez gave the middle school report

B. Elementary School Report
Jonea Thomas gave elementary school report

* 5th grade leading community meetings
VIl. Development

A. Development Update
Jill Reinhardt offered an update on institutional and individual giving, and
discussed the April 2019 cultivation event honoring Trent Hickman and others.
Highlights include

* Calendar-year-end appeal to annual donors (>$1,000 annually) kicks off in
mid-November and will run through December asking supporters to renew
and upgrade to help us meet our match.

* Virginia B. Toulmin Foundation will not renew support.

» Tiger Foundation, Clark Foundation, William E. Simon Foundation, Kornfeld

Foundation, van Ameringen Foundation are all in process/pending. Simon will

consider a request in 2019 after Nov. site visit.

» Spring Cultivation event - venue being finalized before Dec., Board members

are expected to sell 5-10 tickets each (depending on venue capacity)
VIII. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:13 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Arlene Bascom
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts
Minutes

Board of Trustees Meeting & Holiday Celebration

Date and Time
Tuesday December 11, 2018 at 6:30 PM

Location
313 West 119th Sreet, Townhouse |

Trustees Present
Aisha Bell, Arlene Bascom, Barbara Scott, Charles Whites, Denise Brecher, Lori
Biancamano, Susan Geisenheimer

Trustees Absent
Ahmad Sheikh, Eric Osorio, Graham Powis, Katherine Trager, Noni Lopez, Patricia
Kennedy

Guests Present
Jill Reinhardt, Johanne Javel, Jonea Thomas, Karlene Cowan, Miriam Raccah, Richard
Gonzalez

. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests
Lori Biancamano and Susan Geisenheimer joined through FaceTime

B. Call the Meeting to Order

Charles Whites called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School
for the Arts to order on Tuesday Dec 11, 2018 @ 6:55 PM at 313 West 119th
Sreet, Townhouse I.

C. Public Session
No one attended from the public
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D. Approve Minutes
Charles Whites made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees
Monthly Meeting on 11-13-18.
Arlene Bascom seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Finance

A. October 2018 Financial Report
The October 2018 Financial Report was Submitted

B. Director of Finance Position
Discussed the search for the Director of Finance position. The finance committee
is currently coordinating schedules to meet with two candidates.

Il1l. Executive Director Presentation

A. Board on Track
Miriam discussed and encouraged all trustees to use Board on Track and to
update their profiles.

B. January Retreat
Miriam discussed upcoming board retreat for January 2019

IV. Programming

A. Middle School Report
Richard Gonzalez gave the middle school report

B. Elementary School Report
Jonea Thomas gave elementary school report

V. Development

A. Update on End of Year Giving
Jill Reinhardt gave an update on the year-end giving. The match for the Severini
Foster-Gittes gift has been met.

B. April 17th Event
The event in April is to celebrate Trent Hickman, Charter School Growth Fund,
Xanthe Gory, and Julie Wong (TBD) is on track for Wednesday, April 17th. It will
be held at Cecils located at 210 West 118th Street. A tentative run of show was
shared with trustees at the meeting.

VI. Closing Items
A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,

seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:30 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Arlene Bascom

Powered by BoardOnTrack 20of 2



Bronx Charter School for the Arts
Minutes

Board of Trustees Retreat:January 19, 2019

Date and Time
Saturday January 19, 2019 at 12:00 PM

Location
1440 Story Avenue

The Board Meeting was preceded by Bronx Arts' annual retreat which focused on the
growth of the school and the strategic plan.

Trustees Present
Aisha Bell, Arlene Bascom, Barbara Scott, Charles Whites, Denise Brecher, Eric Osorio,
Graham Powis, Katherine Trager, Noni Lopez (remote), Susan Geisenheimer

Trustees Absent
Ahmad Sheikh, Lori Biancamano, Patricia Kennedy

Guests Present
Jill Reinhardt, Johanne Javel, Miriam Raccah
. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Charles Whites called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School
for the Arts to order on Saturday Jan 19, 2019 @ 12:15 PM at 1440 Story Avenue.

C. Approve Minutes

Il. Finance Committee
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts - Board of Trustees Retreat:January 19, 2019 - Minutes - Saturday January 19, 2019 at 12:00 PM

A. Finance Update
Graham Powis presented the finance committee report

Ill. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 12:30 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Charles Whites
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts

Minutes

Board Of Trustees Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday February 12, 2019 at 6:30 PM

Location
Zoom Meeting-Details below

Trustees Present

Ahmad Sheikh (remote), Aisha Bell (remote), Barbara Scott (remote), Charles Whites (remote),
Denise Brecher (remote), Graham Powis (remote), Lori Biancamano (remote), Susan
Geisenheimer (remote)

Trustees Absent
Arlene Bascom, Eric Osorio, Katherine Trager, Noni Lopez, Patricia Kennedy

Guests Present
Jill Reinhardt (remote), Johanne Javel, Jonea Thomas (remote), Karlene Cowan, Miriam Raccah,
Richard Gonzalez (remote)

l. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Charles Whites called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School for the Arts
to order on Tuesday Feb 12, 2019 @ 6:30 PM at Zoom Meeting-Details below.

C. Public Session

D. Approve Minutes
Charles Whites made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees
Retreat:January 19, 2019 on 01-19-19 after revision.
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Lori Biancamano seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Nominating

A. Update
Graham Powis and Susan Geisenheimer will arrange to interview Dan Vislocky to become a

new Board member
lll. Development

A. General Update

Jill Reinhardt presented the development committee report. There is need for more
communication between the finance committee and the development committee. Going
forward Jill will join the finance committee calls

B. April Event
https://donate.bronxarts.net/event/bronx-arts-spring-salon/e219754
Jill outlined the Bronx Arts annual spring reception honoring Trent Hickman, Xanthe Jory,
Julie Wang and the Charter School Growth Fund. After learning that the gift processing fee
for donations online to the April event would cost 3.5%, Board members urged Jill and one
another to ask larger donors to write checks and save the fee.

IV. Finance

A. December Financials
Lori Biancamano reviewed the December financials. They are trending upward. The reserves

are intact.
V. Executive Director

A. Update on Charter Application
Miriam Raccah gave an update on the charter application.

VI. Programming

A. Elementary School Report
Jonea Thomas gave an update on the Elementary School.

B. Middle School Report
Richard Gonzalez gave an update on the middle school.

VIl. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
Charles Whites made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Lori Biancamano seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded
and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:15 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
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Susan Geisenheimer
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts

Minutes

Board of Trustees Meetings

Date and Time
Tuesday March 12, 2019 at 6:30 PM

Location
Zoom Meeting-Details below

Join URL:

Trustees Present

Ahmad Sheikh (remote), Arlene Bascom (remote), Barbara Scott (remote), Charles Whites
(remote), Graham Powis (remote), Katherine Trager (remote), Patricia Kennedy (remote), Susan
Geisenheimer (remote)

Trustees Absent
Aisha Bell, Denise Brecher, Eric Osorio, Lori Biancamano, Noni Lopez

Guests Present

Johanne Javel (remote), Jonea Thomas (remote), Karlene Cowan (remote), Miriam Raccah
(remote), Richard Gonzalez (remote), Tatiana Nadal (remote)

l. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Charles Whites called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School for the Arts
to order on Tuesday Mar 12, 2019 @ 6:35 PM at Zoom Meeting-Details below.

C. Public Session

D. Approve Minutes
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Charles Whites made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Of Trustees Meeting on

02-12-19.
Arlene Bascom seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Finance

A. January 2019 Financial Report
Arlene Bascom reviewed the January Financials. No issues Identified

B. Tatiana Nadal (Director of Finance) Introduction
Miriam Raccah introduced the New Director of Finance, Tatiana Nadal

lll. Nominating

A. Dan Vislocky Board Member Candidate
Susan Geisenheimer made a motion to Approve Dan Vislocky as new board member

pending NYSED approval.
Ahmad Sheikh seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
Graham Powis and Susan Geisenheimer interviewed Dan Vislocky about becoming a Board

Member
IV. Operations

A. Dashboard
Karlene Cowan gave a dashboard review

B. Operations Team
Karlene Cowan discussed the hiring of the two operations managers in February as part of a

plan to make operations more efficient. Two teachers were terminated from the Elementary
School one teacher resigned in January from the Middle School.

V. Programing

A. Middle School Report
Richard Gonzalez gave an update on the Middle School

B. Elementary School Report
Jonea Thomas gave an update on the Elementary School.

VI. Development

A. Development Update
Miriam Raccah announced that Jill Reinhardt had resigned to take a job at The New School.

Barbara Scott presented the development committee report. She reviewed the plans for the
April 17th event and urged all Board Members to try to invite at least 10 people including

themselves.

VII. Executive Director Presentation

A. Charter Application Update
Miriam Raccah gave an update on the new charter prcoess
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VIIl. Vote for Executive Session (if needed only)

A. Vote for Executive Session
An executive session was held

IX. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded

and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:48 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Charles Whites
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts

Minutes

Board of Trustees Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday April 9, 2019 at 6:30 PM

Location
285 Madison Avenue, Suite 1800, New York, NY 10017

Join URL:

Trustees Present

Aisha Bell, Arlene Bascom, Barbara Scott (remote), Dan Vislocky, Denise Brecher, Eric Osorio,
Graham Powis, Katherine Trager, Lori Biancamano, Patricia Kennedy, Susan Geisenheimer
(remote)

Trustees Absent
Ahmad Sheikh, Charles Whites, Noni Lopez

Guests Present
Karlene Cowan, Miriam Raccah, Richard Gonzalez, Tatiana Nadal
I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Graham Powis called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School for the Arts
to order on Tuesday Apr 9, 2019 @ 6:30 PM at 285 Madison Avenue, Suite 1800, New York,
NY 10017.

C. Public Session

D. Approve Minutes
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Arlene Bascom made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees Meetings on
03-12-19.

Susan Geisenheimer seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Nominating

A. Additional two year terms for the following Board members: Katherine Trager and
Barbara Scott
Susan Geisenheimer made a motion to approve the resolution.
Denise Brecher seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
INTENTION: To vote and approve additional two year terms for the following Board
members: Katherine Trager and Barbara Scott WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees
recognizes the need to extend the terms of valuable Board members in order to maintain a
fully functioning Board,

B. Election of Officers
Susan Geisenheimer made a motion to approve the resolution.
Katherine Trager seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
Resolution:
INTENTION: To vote and approve additional two year terms as officers for the following
Board members:
Charles Whites — Chairman
Graham Powis — Vice Chairman
Arlene Bascom— Treasurer
And: To vote and approve an initial two-year term for the following Board member:
Barbara Scott — Secretary

RESOLVED: The Bronx Charter School for the Arts, Board of Trustees approves additional
two-year terms for each of the following Board members:

Charles Whites — Chairman

Graham Powis — Vice Chairman

Arlene Bascom — Treasurer

And an initial two-year term for the following Board member:

Barbara Scott — Secretary

lll. Finance

A. February Financial Report
Arlene Bascom reviewed the February financials. No issues were identified.

IV. Operations

A. Dashboard
Karlene Cowan gave a dashboard overview. There were no changes to enrollment or SPED.

B. Lottery Summary
The Lottery closed on April 1. Karlene started using Schoolmint for the first time. Fewer
students were accepted through the lottery because there were so many siblings.

V. Program Committee
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A. Committe Update
Eric Osorio gave the Programming Committee report

VI. Development

A. Development Update
Miriam Raccah gave the Development Committee report. Bronx Arts is in the final stages of

a grant from the Walton Foundation of $325,000 part of which is for the middle school but the
remainder for new schools. The money will be divided into three tranches.

VII. Executive Director Report

A. New Charter
Miriam Raccah gave an update on the new charter process.

VIIl. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded

and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:40 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Susan Geisenheimer

Graham Powis made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Susan Geisenheimer seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts

Minutes

Board of Trustees Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday May 14, 2019 at 6:30 PM

Location
Zoom Meeting-Details below

Trustees Present
Ahmad Sheikh (remote), Aisha Bell (remote), Dan Vislocky (remote), Denise Brecher (remote), Eric
Osorio (remote), Graham Powis (remote), Katherine Trager (remote), Noni Lopez (remote), Patricia
Kennedy (remote)

Trustees Absent
Arlene Bascom, Barbara Scott, Charles Whites, Lori Biancamano, Susan Geisenheimer

Guests Present
Johanne Javel, Jonea Thomas (remote), Miriam Raccah (remote), Tatiana Nadal (remote)
l. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Graham Powis called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School for the Arts
to order on Tuesday May 14, 2019 @ 6:38 PM at Zoom Meeting-Details below.

C. Public Session

D. Approve Minutes
Katherine Trager made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees Meeting on
04-09-19.
Denise Brecher seconded the motion.
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The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
Il. Nominating

A. Update
No Update

lll. Finance

A. March Financials
Miriam discussed the financial report along with Tatiana. The
Walton Foundation awarded the school with a grant that is up to
$975,000 over a period of 5 years. Expenses are in line with
various adjustments noted in the March 2019 Financials Report
section of the packet.

https://app2.boardontrack.com/org/u2Psmx/event/list#
IV. Operations

A. Dashboard
no major changes were reported

V. Principal Reports

A. Middle School Report
1. Unfortunately, Miriam reported that there were a few suspensions.
2. The Elementary School Art Gallery event was a success. The 6th
grade band performed while families enjoyed their children&#39;s
artwork and refreshments. All students dressed up for the occasion.
3. Students were comfortable with the Math and Terra Nova exams.
4. The middle school musical is quickly approaching.

B. Elementary School Report
Jonea reported that April’s attendance was low due to school being
open the week after Easter where other schools were closed.
1.Students, teachers and staff were Superheroes during the Math
Test Rally.
2. She was proud to report that there were no measles cases. Fourth
graders are preparing for the Terra Nova and Science Tests.

VI. Development

A. Development Update
Spring Salon Update

VII. Executive Director Presentation

A. Updates
1. It is difficult to find teachers in both schools.
2. Miriam reflected on the ins and outs of opening a new school. In
hindsight, opening with less students (90) instead of 118 would
have worked out a little better for admin, staff and students
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3. Miriam will hire a Recruitment Managing per the strategic plan and
utilizing Walton funding.

4. There is a possibility that Civic Builders may sell to Bronx Arts.

5. Miriam traveled to Albany in effort to get the cap lifted.

6. She traveled to California for a day conference. Her takeaway is to
deliberately engage families and focus more on the socio-emotional
needs of our students.

VIIl. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded

and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:28 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Aisha Bell
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Bronx Charter School for the Arts

Minutes

Board of Trustees Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday June 11, 2019 at 6:30 PM

Location
1440 Story Avenue Bronx, NY 10473

Trustees Present

Arlene Bascom, Barbara Scott, Charles Whites (remote), Dan Vislocky, Denise Brecher, Graham
Powis, Katherine Trager (remote), Lori Biancamano (remote), Noni Lopez (remote), Patricia
Kennedy (remote), Susan Geisenheimer

Trustees Absent
Ahmad Sheikh, Aisha Bell, Eric Osorio

Guests Present
Johanne Javel, Jonea Thomas, Karlene Cowan, Miriam Raccah, Tatiana Nadal, Tolulola Laguda
I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Miriam Raccah called a meeting of the board of trustees of Bronx Charter School for the Arts
to order on Tuesday Jun 11, 2019 @ 6:30 PM at 1440 Story Avenue Bronx, NY 10473.

C. Public Session

D. Approve Minutes
Graham Powis made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees Meeting on

05-14-19.
Susan Geisenheimer seconded the motion.
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The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
Il. Nominating

A. Executive Director Evaluation

» Charles spoke about the Executive Director evaluation; process must be completed by
July 13th, board executive committee, committee heads, along with staff will be part of
the input

* Miriam to complete her self-evaluation by June 17th

B. SY 2019 - 2020 Board Meeting Calendar
Miriam presented the board meeting calendar for SY19-20, reviewed dates; discussion of
board member availability on July 9th for meeting

C. Board Evaluation
Discussion about how we function as a board and assessment of work done

lll. Finance

A. April Financials

* Total net income for April YTD is tracking at $481K, $252K over budget,

 Total Revenue came under budget by $223K primarily due to decrease in private
contributions, from less foundations grants

» Board giving roughly on target for the year; board members to see Miriam to determine
where their individual pledge stands

B. 2019-2020 Budget
Arlene Bascom made a motion to accept the budget.
Susan Geisenheimer seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

IV. Operations

A. Dashboard
Karlene Cowan provided report on May dashboard

B. Recruitment Update
Karlene highlighted that use of various technology and resources used to post, locate and
recruit. This included Greenhouse (tech), partnering with Edgility, and the TNTP (The New
Teacher Project). There has been no magic resource.

V. Principal Reports

A. Elementary School Report
Jonea reported on Elementary School

» To keep school engaging and the academic focus in the upcoming end of school days,
there have been a series of themed "Spirit" days

+ Jonea and team are planning for the jumpstart Kindergarten program this summer

» Stepping up Ceremony and 5th grade trip are a year end highlight.

+ Families have been sent material for summer camps and enrichment activities
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VI. Executive Director Presentation

A. Charter Renewal

» Miriam shared that SY2019-2020 is Bronx Arts Charter renewal year. Miriam requested
the the Board keep Bronx Arts top of mind during the renewal period

» Performance Benchmarks (Charter School Performance Framework) published by SED
is located on BoardonTrack. Members are encouraged to read.

» The framework will help the board to understand what tests to pay attention to;
understand results and what we might consider if Bronx Arts is not meeting the
stated results

* Renewal document due by August; school visit will take place in the fall.
+ Approximate timeline for SED process is June-December 2019

B. Ad-Hoc Topics

» Miriam was invited to participate and speak on a panel developed by the Arts
Commission of the American Academy of Arts and Sciences. She noted that
participants were particularly in agreement about the challenges of creating integrated

arts programs among other things.
» Attendees of note at the commission included heads of bother Kennedy Center and

Schomburg as well as actor, John Lithgow
» Arlene asked about the development of director search. The search has been deferred
to summer given the need for focus on teacher hiring in both schools.

VII. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded

and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:10 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Barbara Scott
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Entry 10 Enroliment and Retention of Special

Populations
Created: 07/30/2019 « Last updated: 08/01/2019

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain
enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who
are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress

toward meeting its enroliment and retention targets in 2019 20.

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR THE ARTSSection Heading

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20

In the 2018 19 school year, 84.12% of

students were economically disadvantaged,

falling short our enrollment target of 88.5%

by 4.38 percentage points. The school’s

success in recruiting and enrolling students
Econom from low income families is partially due to As we were close to meeting the enroliment
ically the neighborhoods in which our students target for Economically Disadvantaged
Disadva reside (one of the poorest Congressional students in 2018 19 Bronx Arts will utilize the
ntaged  Districts) and partially due to our recruitment same efforts in 2019 20.

efforts. We are dedicated to serving students

in Hunts Point and in the South Bronx and,

therefore, we focus most of our student

recruitment in these areas, which are

predominantly low income neighborhoods.

In the past year, 16.86% of students were
English Language Learners, exceeding the
enrollment target for this subgroup of 12.5%
by 4.36 percentage points. To attract ELL
students, all of our recruitment and
enrollment materials are prepared in Spanish
as well as English. To increase enrollment of

English  ELL students, the school’s staff identify and

Langua partner with several privately operated

ge preschool providers that cater to populations

Learner with Latin American and Caribbean

s/Multili  background and West African immigrants.

ngual Recruitment strategies include both

Learner scheduled onsite and offsite presentations

As we surpassed the enrollment target for
English Language Learners in 2018 19, Bronx
Arts will utilize the same efforts in 2019 20.
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Student
s with
Disabilit
ies

conducted by the school’s staff including
translation in the language(s) spoken by
students and parents; and weekly
advertisements published in local media
including newspapers, websites and radio
conducted or translated in the various
languages spoken in the community.

For the recruitment of Students with
Disabilities (23.52% of total student body vs.
target of 19.5%), we relied on a strong
relationship with the Committee on Special
Education, which frequently refers parents of
special needs students to our school. In
order to increase the pool of potential
applicants, the school conducted further
outreach to the Committee on Special
Education to encourage parents who reside
within Community School District 8 to apply
through the lottery or waiting list. In
addition, the school continued to work
closely with the Committee on Special
Education (CSE) to ensure timely evaluation,
identification, review and placement of
students

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19

To retain economically disadvantaged
students in 2018 19, Bronx Arts ensured
that all students had equal opportunity to
participate in the school community. The
school worked diligently to cultivate an
environment that was supportive for any
families in need. For example, uniforms were
provided free of charge for any families who
could not afford them. In addition, whenever
possible, the school did not charge for field
trips and special programs, and if there is a
minimal charge, the school was prepared to
cover this expense if needed.

In order to retain and accommodate students
who are identified as English Language
Learners and their families, all parent notices
and re registration materials were provided
in Spanish and English. Translation services
were offered at all major Bronx Arts events
and parent teacher conferences as needed.
The school also hired a full time certified ESL

2/3

As we exceeded the enrollment target for
Students with Disabilities in 2018 19, Bronx
Arts will utilize the same efforts in 2019 20.

Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20

Bronx Arts plans to utilize the same
strategies to retain Economically
Disadvantaged students in the coming year,
although revisions to specific services may
be made if warranted by changing needs of
students, families and the broader school
community.



English
Langua
ge
Learner
s/Multili
ngual
Learner
S

Student
s with
Disabilit
ies

teacher to provide targeted instructions for
all students identified as English Language
Learners, implemented the new ESL
standards, and used the Cornerstone
curriculum by Pearson for instruction. During
the school year, all English Language
Learners also attended the various extended
learning opportunities programs including
After School, Saturday School and
Intersession programs. In addition, the
school’s curriculum incorporates units of
study in the literacy, social studies and the
Arts that reflect the ethnic and cultural
heritages of its various student populations.
The annual calendar of performances and
related events was promoted in the
community with the intent to provide a more
inclusive environment for community
members with limited English proficiency.

To retain Students with Disabilities, Bronx
Arts provided extensive programming
exceeding all IEP requirements through six
ICT classrooms, a SETTS provider, Special
Education Director, Social Worker and
Guidance Counselor. Through the dual use of
ICT and SETTS, the school offered students
more support than was mandated by student
IEPs to ensure that students had the
resources necessary for their success.
Students also received additional support
from the Special Education Director and
Learning Specialists when they pushed into
classrooms Special education and general
education coteachers collaborated daily to
plan instruction, lessons and units for all
students. School leaders reviewed these
lesson plans weekly. The Special Education
Director observed ICT classrooms weekly and
provided immediate feedback, coaching and
modeling on effective differentiation
techniques. The Special Education Director
also collaborated with teachers to evaluate
and provide feedback to co teaching pairs.
The Special Education Director, Social
Worker and Guidance Counselor also provide
mandated counseling to students whose IEPs
require it. Parents were kept continually
informed of their child's progress through
frequent and consistent communication.
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Bronx Arts plans to utilize the same
strategies to retain English Language
Learners in the coming year, although
revisions to specific services may be made if
warranted by changing student needs.

Bronx Arts plans to utilize the same
strategies to retain Students with Disabilities
in the coming year, although revisions to
specific services may be made if warranted
by changing student needs.
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator
Attrition

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing.

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables
Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and
Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing
during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of
staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June
30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the
FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019
using the tables provided.

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE of

Teachers on Teachers Teachers Filling Teachers Added  Classroom

6/30/18 Departed 7/1/18 Vacant Positions in New Positions Teachers on
6/30/19 7/1/18 6/30/19 7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019

27 23 26 0 30

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table

FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Administrative Administrators Administrators Administrators Administrative

Positions on Departed 7/1/18 Filling Vacant Added in New Positions on

6/30/18 6/30/19 Positions 7/1/18  Positions 7/1/18  6/30/19
6/30/19 6/30/19

9 4 7 1 14
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3. Tell your school's story

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some
teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within
the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a
teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school.

This year there were many changes at Bronx Arts. We had a new principal, and the middle school was
new last year. Hiring was very challenging last year and turnover resulted when the lack of fit was
determined and/or when teachers determined that they did not agree with the direction of the schools.
We have worked hard to do a better job of hiring going into this school year and we are confident that we
will have lower attrition.

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance
through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA)
prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of
individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been
terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH
system.

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system?

Yes

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system?

Not Applicable

Thank you
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ﬁ Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each
column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers
would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include
paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants.

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be
counted only once.
FTE Count
1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 14

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching 0
experience (6 30 19)

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19)

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19)

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 8
experience (6 30 19)

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19)

FTE Count of All Uncertified 14
Teachers as of 6/30/19

FTE Count of All Certified 16
Teachers as of 6/30/19

Thank you.
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July 2019

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

August '19

SMTWTF S

1 2 3

4 56 7 8 9 10

15 16 17

11 12 13 14
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28

29 30 31

30 1 2 3 4 5 6
SCHOOL CLOSED SCHOOL CLOSED SCHOOL CLOSED Independence Day SCHOOL CLOSED
SCHOOL CLOSED
7 8 L 10 11 12 13
Summer School Begins Summer School Summer School Summer School
Leadership Retreat Leadership Retreat Leadership Retreat
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
Summer School Summer School Summer School Summer School
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
Summer School Summer School Summer School Summer School BAM PARENT
ORIENTATION
28 29 30 31 1 2 3
Summer School Summer School Summer School Summer School Ends
4 5 Notes

Work hours 9am to 4pm Monday to Thursday

4 Uertexya:

CALENDAR TEMPLATES by Vertex42.com

https://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

Step 1: Enter the Year and Start Month

Step 2: Choose the Start Day

Start Day of Week —

Start Month



July '19

September '19

B SMTWTFS SMTWTFS
ugust 1. 2 3 4 5 6 ¥.2 3 45 6 7
7 8: 9-:10:311:12:13 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
4151617 18 19 20 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
28 29 30 31 29 30
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
28 29 30 31 1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
BAM SLT START BAM SLT Kickboard
Training
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
BAM Staff Start BAM Staff Kickboard New BAE Staff Begin New BAE Staff Begin
BAE SLT START Training
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
BAE Staff Start TCRW Training @BAE
8:00 AM Diversity Training
@ BAM 8AM
Littlebird
1:00 - 3:00pm
25 26 27 28 29 30 31
Summer Bridge Begins | Summer Bridge BAM | Summer Bridge BAM | Summer Bridge Ends
6th grade only BAE Welcome BBQ
4:30 - 6:30pm
BAM Lemonade Social
12:00-12:30PM
1 2 Notes

Student

Staff

4

10




August 19 October '19

September 2019 ciih aiiihis

T 23 4 5
6 7 8 9 1011 12
11 1213141516 17 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 27 28 29 30 31
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
1 2 3 4 5 6 7/
LABOR DAY No School FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL BAM Community Meeting
SCHOOL CLOSED 1/2 Day Grade K 1/2 Day Grade K 1/2 Day Grade K
No Yellow Bus No Yellow Bus No Yellow Bus
CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
. ) BAM Back to School . .
First Day of Busing Night 6:00pm-8:00pm BAM Community Meeting
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
Grade 1&2 F&P Start NYSETEL Closes
Alice Walton @ BAE BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
BAM Community Meeting
29 30 1 2 3 4 5
Rosh Hashanah
NO SCHOOL
FOR STUDENTS
PD FOR STAFF
CRITICAL DAY
6 7 Notes
Student Staff
19 20




September '19 November '19

SMTWTF S SMTWTF S
ctober 133380 aannd
8 9:10-11:12:13 14 3 45 6 7 8 9
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
29 30 1 2 3 4 5
Rosh Hashanah Q1 1/2 Way Mark
SCHOOL OPEN BAM Community Meeting
6 7 ] 9 10 11 12
Academic After School Yom Kippur Progress Reports Home
Begins @BAE NO SCHOOL FOR Hispanic Heritage Month
STUDENTS Al o L (e mm——
Printing
Progress Reports to DCI PD FOR STAFF
@3:30 CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
COLUMBUS DAY Arts After School BB St BAM Community Meeting
Conferences
SCHOOL CLOSED Begins @BAE
CRITICAL DAY
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
BAM Community Meeting
27 28 29 30 31 1 2
All BAE Afterschool |Storybook Character Day
Canceled 1/2 Day
12:00 Dismissal
BAM 1/2 Day - 12:15
3 4 Notes
Student Staff
21 22




November 2019

October '19
SMTWTEF S

2.2 3 4 5 4
67" 8 9:10:1112 10 11 12 13 14
3141516 17 18 19 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
27 28 29 30 31 1 2
BAM Community Meeting
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
ELECTION DAY 5pm - Q1 Report Card Q1 Ends
NO SCHOOL Comments Due to GTL BAM Community Meeting
FOR STUDENTS
PD DAY FOR STAFF
CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY
10 11 a2 13 14 15 16
e
VETERANS DAY Q2 Opens Final Q1 Report Card Report Card Comments
SCHOOL CLOSED Grades/Comments Due Back to Teachers
Due to DCI @8am by 3:30pm
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY SATURDAY SCHOOL
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
All Final Q1 Edits in Report Card Printing PT Conferences BAM Community Meeting
by 3:30pm 12:30 - 7:30pm
1/2 Day
12:00 Dismissal
CRITICAL DAY SATURDAY SCHOOL
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
PT Conferences 1/2 Day THANKSGIVING DAY |THANKSGIVNG RECESS
3:45pm - 5:00pm 12:00pm Dismissal SCHOOL CLOSED SCHOOL CLOSED
BAM 1/2 Day - 12:15
CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY
1 2 Notes

Student

Staff

17

18




November '19 January 20
SMTWTTFS SMTWTEFES
December 201 THNTTY
3456789 567891011
1011 12 13 14 15 16 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY SATURDAY SCHOOL
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
Q2 1/2 Way Mark
BAM Community Meeting
SATURDAY SCHOOL
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
BAM Arts Focus Expo 1/2 Day
BAE - 12:00 BAM 12:15
Holiday Party
Progress Reports to DCI Progress Reports Home| BAM Community Meeting
@3:30 CRITICAL DAY
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
WINTER RECESS CHRISTMAS EVE CHRISTMAS DAY WINTER RECESS WINTER RECESS
29 30 31 1 2 3 4
WINTER RECESS WINTER RECESS
5 6 Notes

Student

Staff

15

15




January 2020

10 11 12 13 14 2 3 45 6 7 8
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
29 30 31 1 2 3 4
NEW YEAR'S DAY SCHOOL CLOSED NO SCHOOL
FOR STUDENTS
PD DAY FOR STAFF
CRITICAL DAY
5 6 7 8 9 10
BAM Community Meeting
SATURDAY SCHOOL
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
DR. MLK JR. DAY Comments Due To GTL
SCHOOL CLOSED @ 5:00pm
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY SATURDAY SCHOOL
26 27 28 29 30 31 1
End of Q2 Q3 Opens DCI returns comments
Comments & Grades to teachers by 5:00pm
Grades by 8:00am BAM Community Meeting
2 3 Notes
Student Staff
19 20




January 20 March 20
F SMTWTTFS SMTWTF S
el,ruary 1234 123 45¢67
56 7 8 91011 8 9 101112 13 14
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
26 27 28 29 30 31 1
SATURDAY SCHOOL
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
RC Final edits and print No Staff PD PC Conferences PC Conferences
by 8:00am 12:30 - 7:30pm 3:45 - 5:00pm
1/2 Day BAM Community Meeting
12:00 Dismissal
SATURDAY SCHOOL
9 10 12 13 14 15
1/2 Day
BAE 12:00 BAM 12:15
PD for Staff
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
PRESIDENT'S DAY MID-WINTER RECESS | MID-WINTER RECESS | MID-WINTER RECESS | MID-WINTER RECESS
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY SATURDAY SCHOOL
1 2 Notes

PLEASE DO NOT DO MOCK ELA AROUND REPORT CARDS

Student

Staff

15

15




February '20 April 20
M SMTWTTFS SMTWTF S
rc 1 1 2 '3 4
a 2:3 4:5 6.7 8 S 6 1 8 9 10'11
9 1011 12 131415 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 26 27 28 29 30
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Q3 1/2 Way Mark
BAM Community Meeting
SATURDAY SCHOOL
8 9 11 12 13 14
Progress Reports to DCI Progress Reports Home 1/2 Day
by 3:30pm BAE - 12:00 BAM 12:15
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
SCHOOL CLOSED
Progress Report BAM Parent Teacher BAM iy 2
Printing Conferences "
CRITICAL DAY SATURDAY SCHOOL
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
NYS ELA DAY 1 NYS ELA DAY 2 NYS ELA MAKE-UP
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY SATURDAY SCHOOL
29 30 31 1 2 3 4
5 6 Notes

Student

Staff

21

21




March '20 May ‘20
® SMTWTTFS SMTWTF S
p r I 1. 2. 8- 45 6 7 3
8: 9:10:11:12:13 14 3 & 5 8 A 8 9
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
29 30 31 1 2 3 4
Art Gallery Comments due to GTL
by 5pm
BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
GOOD FRIDAY
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
NYSESLAT OPENS End of Q3 Q4 Opens
Speaking Final Q3 Report Card | BAM Community Meeting
Grades/Comments
Due to DCl @8am
CRITICAL DAY Draft Print SATURDAY SCHOOL
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
DCI Returns Edits NYS MATH DAY 1 NYS MATH DAY 2 NYS MATH MAKE-UP |Final Report Card Print
by 8:00am BAM Community Meeting
CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY CRITICAL DAY
26 27 28 29 30 1 2
PC Conferences
12:30 - 7:30pm
1/2 Day
12:00 Dismissal
CRITICAL DAY
3 4 Notes

Student

Staff

16

16




May 2020

April 20
SMTWTF S

30 28 2
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
26 27 28 29 30 1 2
BAM Community Meeting
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
BAM Community Meeting
10 11 13 14 15 16
BAM Community Meeting
NYSESLAT CLOSES
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
Q4 1/2 Way Mark Progress Reports Home 1/2 Day
Progress Report to DCI BAE - 12:00 BAM 12:15
by 3:30am BAM Community Meeting
Bronx Board #2 Meeting
Science Window Opens 6-8pm @ BAE CRITICAL DAY
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
MEMORIAL DAY BAM Community Meeting
SCHOOL CLOSED
Science Test
CRITICAL DAY Window Closes
31 1 Notes

See email from Myishia re: the Comunity Board 2 Meeting.

Student

Staff

20

20




May 20 July '20
SMTWTF S SMTWTF S
une T
3 456 7 8 9 5 6 7 ‘8 9 1011
10 11 12 13 141516 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
31 1 2 3 4 5 6
BAM Community Meeting
Grade 4
Sciecne Written Exam
7 8 10 11 12 13
1/2 Day Comments Due to GTL
BAE - 12:00 BAM 12:15 @ 5:00pm
FOR STUDENTS BAM Community Meeting
Clerical Day Staff
CRITICAL DAY
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
Comments and Final End of Q4 BAE Field Day
Grades to DCI by 8am DCI Returns comments
Draft Print by 5:00pm
BAM Community Meeting
21 22 23 24 BAMField Day 25 26 27
All Final Edits by 8am LAST DAY OF SCHOOL DOE LAST DAY
Final Print 1/2 Day Staff/Students
BAE 12:00 BAM 12:15
Report Cards Home
CRITICAL DAY
28 29 30 1 2 3 4
5 6 Notes

Student

Staff

17

17




Student Staff

August 4* 10*

SEPTEMBER 19 20
OCTOBER 21 22
NOVEMBER 17 18
DECEMBER 15 15
JANUARY 19 20
FEBRUARY 15 15
MARCH 21 21
APRIL 16 16
MAY 20 20
JUNE 17 17

TOTAL 180 184





